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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 5
77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
CHICAGO, IL 60604-3590

FEB 07 2017

REPLY TO THE ATTENTICON OF:

Mr. Steven Lovelace
Environmental Systems Manager
Lawrence Industries Inc.

423 Walbridge Street
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49007

Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order

Lawrence Indusinies Inc.
Docket No: RCRA-05-2017-0007

Dear Mr. Lovelace:

Enclosed please find an original signed fully-executed Consent Agreement and Final Order
(CAFO) in resolution of the ove case. The originals were filed with the Regional Hearing

G ;
Please pay a civil penalty in the amount of $16,000 in the manner prescribed in paragraph 39 of
the CAFO, and reference all checks with the docket number RCRA-05-2017-0007 ~  The
payment is due within 30 calendar days of the effective date of the CAFO. Also, enclosed is a
Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission Registrant’s Duty to Disclosed Environmental
Legal Proceedings. Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter.

Sincerely,

Enclosures

ce: Steve Sliver, MDEQ (slivers@michigan.gov)
Fred Seliers, MDEQ (sellersfi@michigan.gov)
Lonnie Lee, MDEQ (leeli@michigan.gov)
Larry Bean, NDEQ (beanl@michigan.gov)
Jeffrey Trevino, ORC (trevino.jeffrey@epa.gov)
Steven Lovelace, (Lawrenceind{@aol.com)

Recycled/Recyclable e Printed with Vegatable Oil Baged Inks on 100% Recycled Paper (100% Post-Consumer}



MOTICE OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COI\MSSION REGISTRANTS’ DUTY
TO DISCLOSE ENVIRONMENTAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Securities and Exchange Commission regulations require companies registered with the SEC {(e.g.,
publicly traded comparries) to disclose, on at least a quarterly basis, the existence of certain administrative
or judicial proceedings taken against them arising under Federal, State or local provisions that have the
primary purpose of protecting the environment. Insfruction 5 to fiem 103 of the SEC’s Regulation 5-K.
(17 CFR 229.103) requires disclosure of these environmental legal proceedings. For those SEC
registrants that use the SEC’s “small business issuer” reporting system, Instructions 1-4 to Item 103 of the
SEC’s Regulation S-B (17 CEFR 228.103) requires disclosure of these environmental legal procesdings.

Ifyou are an SEC registrant, you have a duty to disclese the existence of pending or known to be
contemplated environmental legal proceedings that meet any of the following criteria (17 CFR
22910353 A(CY):

A. Such proceeding is material to the business or financial condition of the registrant;

B. Such proceeding involves primarily a claim for damages, or involves potential imonetary sanctions,
capital expenditures, deferred charges or charges to income and the amount involved, exclusive of
inferest and costs, exceeds 10 percent of the current assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a
congolidated basis;-or

C. A governmental authority is a party to such proceeding and such proceeding involves potential
monetary sanctions, unless the registrant reasonably believes that such proceeding will result in no
monetary sanctions, or in monetary sanctions, exclusive of interest and costs, of less than $1006,000;
provided, however, that such proceedings which are similar in nature may be grouped and cescribed
generically.

Specific information regarding the environmental legal proceedings that must be disclosed is set forth in
Item 103 of Regulation S-K or, for registrants using the “small business issuer” reporting system, [tem
103(a){b) of Regnlation S-B. If disclosure is required, it must biiefly describe the proceeding, “including
the name of the court or agency in which the proceedings are pending, the date mstituted, the principal
parties thereto, a description of the factual basis alleged to underlie the proceedings and the relief sought.”

You have been identified as a party to an envirotimental legal proceeding to which the United States
government is, or was, a party. If you are an SEC regstrant, this environmental legal proceeding may trigger,
or may already have triggered, the disclosure obligation under the SEC regulations described above.

This notice is beingfprovided to inform you of SEC registrants’ duty to disclose any relevant environmental
legal proceedings to the SEC. This'notice does not create, modify or interpret any existmg legal obligations, it

" is not ntended to be an exhaustive description of the legally applicable requirements and it is not a substitute
for regulations published in the Code of Federal Regulations. This notice has been issued to you for
information purposes only. No determination of the applicability of this reporting requirement to your
company has been made by any governmental entity. You should seek competent counsel in determining the
applicability of these and other SEC requirements to the environmental legal proceeding at issue, as well as
any other proceedings known to be contemplated by governmental authorities.

If vou have any questions about the SEC’s environmental disclosure requirements, please contact the SEC
{Jffice of the Special Senior Counsel for Disclosure Operations af (202) 942-1838.



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 5

in the Matter oft Docket No, RCRA-05-2017-0007

} o r Proceeding to Commence and Conclude
ail Aetion te Assess a Civil Penalty
Und&r Seetion 3008(a) of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Aet,

42 U.S.C.§ 6928(a)

Lawrence [ndastries, Inc., /
Kalamazoo, Michigan,

Respsndent.

Copsent Asveement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement

1. Thisigan administrafive action commenced and concluded tmder Section 3008(a)
of the Solid Waste Disposal At zs amiended, alse known as the Resource Conservation and
Tecovery Act (RCRAY, 42 U.8.C. § 6928(a), and Sections 22.13(bj and 22.18(b)}2) and (31ef
the Consclidated Rules of Practice Gsvsmiﬁg the Administrative ASSﬁséiﬁeni of Civil Penalties
and the Rovocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules) as codified at
40 CF.R. Part 22,

2. The Cém;}il.ainani is the Director of the Land and 'Chemicalé Division, United States
Environmental Protection Agency (1.8, EPA), Region 5. |

3. U.S. EPA provided netice of commencement of this action to the State of Mickigan
parsaant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).

4. Respondent is Lavwrenge ?ﬁdusm'es, Ine., a corporation doing business in the State of
Michigan,

5. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of actién Before the filing of a
complaint the administrative action may be commenced and concluded éi.muitanagusly by the

issuance of & consent agreement and final order (CAFO). 40 CFR §22.13(b).



6.  Thepartics apree that settling this action without the filing of a‘cem.p'l.aim or the
adindication of any issue of fact or law is in their mterest and in the public interest.

7. TRespondent consents o the as&asgfneﬁt of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO
and to the tem-ljs; of this CAFO.

Jurisdietion and Walver of Right tg Hearing

% Jurisdiction for this acﬁe;%l is conferred upen U.S. EPA by Sections 3(}06 and 3003
of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6926 and 6928,

9, Resg@ndent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFC, and nai_;thar admits
nor denies the facéiai allegations in this CAFO.

10. Respondent waives ifs right to request a hearing as provided at 40 CF.R. §22.15€e),
and sny right to contest the allegations in this. CAFO, and its ight to appeal this CAFO.

11 Réspandcnt certifies that it s complying fully with RCRA, 42 US.C. 8§ 6901 —
5992k, and the regulations at 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 - 278, |

Statutory and Reonlatory Backergund

{2, 17.S.FPA has promulgated regulations, codified at 40 C.F R. Parts 260 tﬁmugh 279,
governing generators and transporters of hazardous waste and facilities that treat, st@.zfe; and
dispose of ﬂaz&rdous waste, pursuant to Sections 3001 — 3007 of RCRA, 42 US.C. §§ 6921 —
6927.

13. Pusuant 1 Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, the Administrator of
{18, FPA may authorize 2 state to administer the RCRA hazardous waste program in hiew of the
federal program when the Administrator finds that the state program meets csrtai# conditions,
Any violation of regulations promulgated pursuant to Subtitle C {Sections 3001-3023 of RCRA,

£2U8C 88 692}—6?}396} ot eny state provision authorized pursuant to Section 3@{}6 of RCRA

)



constitutes a viotation of RCRA, subject fo the assessment of cﬁV'ﬂ penalties and issuance of
comphiance orders as provided in Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 1U.S.C. § 6928,

14. Pursuant fo Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 1.S.C. § 6926(b), the Administrator of
1.8, EPA granted the State of Michigan final authorization 1o administer a state hazardoas waste
program in lien of the federal govermment’s base RCRA program effective October 30, 1986. 51
Fed Reg, 36804 (October 16, 1986},

15. Under Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), U.S. EPA may issue an
order assessing a civil penalty for any past or current yioiaﬁen? r_cquiﬁﬂg compliance
izz&zz;ediately or within & specifiedperiod of time, or both. The Administrator of U.5. EPA may
assess a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day for each violation of Subiitle C of RCRA that
cocurred after January 12, 2009 through November 2, 2015, pursuant to Section 30Q08(a) of
RORA, 42 11.5.0. § 6928{a), and 40 CF.R. Part 19.

Factual Allegations and Alleged Vielations

16. Respondent was and is a “person” as defined by MACR. 299.5106(1), 46 CT.R,
§ 260.10, and Section [004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6003(15). |

17. Respondent is the “gwner” or “operator,” as those terms are defimed urder MAC R.
369.010]1-9109 and 40 C.F.R. § 260.10, of a facility located at 423 Walbrid ge Sireet, Kalamazoo,
Michizan, (the factlity}.

18, OmMay 16, 2013, US.EPA conducted an mspection of the facility.

19 The facility consists of land aﬁd siructures, other appurtenances, and Improvements
on the land used for treating, storing, or dispesing of hazardous waste.

20. Respondent manufactures metal plated tools.

21, Atall times relevant to this CAFQ, Respondent created solid wastes including F006

[



Metal Hydroxide Sludge.

22, Respondent’s processes at the facility produce several hazardous wastes identified
or listed in MAC R, 299.9201-9230 and 40 CFR Parts 260-270.

33 Respondent is a “generator,” a5 fhat term s defined in MAC R. 299.9104(a) and
40 CER. § 260,10,

24. Respondent produced more than 1,000 lajograms {E,Zi}ﬁ pounds) of hazardous
wasie each calendar month of prior to the éaspecﬁen, and was a large quantity gﬁﬁcmior‘

25, Respondent is sabject o the regulations prommulgated pursuant to Subtitle Cof
ROCRA AZUSC 88 5923 - 9359, an-d.ﬂ}e ahalogous state regulations as part of the applicable
state izazardoué wasls managemcﬁi program for the state of Michigan. |

26. Atall times relevant to this CAFQ, the Sta‘ée; of Michigan has not issned a permut to
Respondent to treat, stare, or dispose of hazardous waste at the facility.

F7. At ol times relevant to this CATFO, Respondent did not have nterim status for the
treatment, storage, ot disposal of hazardous waste at the facility.

| Ceunt 1

28. Complainant in;zoz_tsem‘tég paragraphs 1 through 27 of this CAFO as though set forth
n this paragraph. |

29, Pursmant to 3005(a) or RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), and thé reguiations at 40 CFR.
Part 270, the treatment, storage, o1 disposal of hazardous waste by any person who has not
applied for or received 2 I@srmﬁt 15 prohibited. |

30, Pursuant to MAC R 299.9306 and 40 CFR. § 262.34(a), and subject to certam
exceptions, a geperdtor of hazardons wagte may accumulate hazerdons waste on-site for 90 days

ot less without having a permit or interim status, provided that the generator complies with all



_appéigabl.e conditions of MAC R 269.9306 and 40 CER. § 262.34(a).

| 31, Hthe conditions of MAC B. 2999306 and 40 CF.R. § 262.34 arc not met, then the
generator must apply foran operating permit under MAC R. 2999507, 2999508, 299.9510 and
4% CF.R. Part 264 or 40 CFR. §§ 270.1(c), 270.10{(a} and (d},:and 27013, -

32, OnMay 16, 2&3‘3, Respondent had in its Wastewater Treatment Room a one-cibic
vard container with 'hazard{ms waste and a 55-gallon satellife drum With_h&zérdaus waste, but
Respondent failed to label or mark cither with: 1) the words “Hazardous Waste;” 2} the
Hazardous Waste Namber or Code; and, 3) the Hazardons Waste Accumulation Start Date, in
vioclation of MAC R. 299.9306(4)(d) and 40 C.FR. § 262.34{d)(4), MAC R. 299.9306(4)(c), and
MAC R, 299.9306(4)(c) and 40 C.ER. § 262.34(d)(4), respeciively.

33. OnMay 16, 2013, Respondent had in its Wastewater Treatment Room 2 one-cubic
yard container stoting hazardous waste open and without a 1id and 2 55-gallon satellite drum '
storing haéaréous waste open and without & lid, in violation of MAC R. 289 8306(2) and
(YY) and 40 CFR. §§ 262.34c) (1)), {8)(2), and 40 C.FR.265.173(a).

34, OnMay 16, 2013, Respondent used a satellite container to accumulate ﬁazardoﬁs
waste in excess of S3-gallons, but failed to mark its satellite.container with the da*;e it began
acenmulating hazardous waste in excess of 35 gallons, and failed to mgve it to a storage area
| within three davs, in violation of MAC R. 299.9306(2) and 40 CFR. § 262 342

35, Om May 16, 2013, Respondent brad stored hazardous waste at its facility for more
fhan 180 days in vielation of MAC R. 299.9502(1) and 40 CE.R. §§ 270.1.

36, Therefore, Respondent failed to meet the conditions of MAC R, 299.9306 and
40 CFR. § 262.34 necessary to exernpt il from the requirement to obtain intertm states or apply

for and obtain a permit for the storage of hazardous waste.

1.



37, Consequently, Respondent stored hazardous waste without g perait to% interim stats
in violarion of Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925, and the regulations found at MAC R
2‘99.9502; 2995508, ané 40 CER. Part 264 or 40 CFR. §§ 270.1(c), 270.10(2) and (d), and
270.13. | h

Civil ?enﬁﬂ .

38, Pursuant to Section 3008{a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.5.C. § 6928(2)(3), Complainant
determined thaf an appropriate civil penalty to ssitle this action is 316,000, In determining the
penalty amount, Complainant took into account the seriousness of the violation and any good
faith efforts fo comply withﬂ}e applicable requirements and U.S. BPA’s RCRA Civil Penalty
Policy, dated June 23, 2003,

36, Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a
516,000 civil penalty for {he RCRA violations by sending a cashier’s or certified check, payable

i oL

to the “Treasurer, United States of America,” o

1S EPA
Fines and Penalties
Cincinmat Fmsmce Center
P.O. Box 979077
St Leus, MO 63197-9G00
The check ruust state the case Hile, “Lawrence Industries, Tnc.,” and the docket number of this
CAFC.
A0, A trapsmitial letter stating Respondent’s name, the case fitte and the case docket

number must accompany the payment, Respendent must send a copy of the check and

rransmittal leter o0



Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19])
1.5 EPA, Repgion 5
77 West Jackson Blvd.
Chicage, 1L 60604
Cindy Dabaer (LE-8])
RCRA Branch
U.S. EPA, Region 5
77 West Jackson Bivd
Chicago, IL 60604
Jeffery M. Trevino (C-140)
Office of Regional Counsel
{8, EPA, Region 5
77 West jackson Blvd.
Chicago, 1L 60604

41. This eivil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

42 I Respondent does not timely pay the civil penalty, U.S. EPA may bring an action
to collect any unpaid _pom'-dn of the penalty with nferest, hanclﬁingcharges: manpaymeﬁt
pena?;ies_a and the United States eﬁeréﬁmem expenses for the collection action. The yz;}};ﬁiji o
amount, and appmpriateﬁeés of the civil pemalty are not reviewable in a collection action.

43, Pursuant to 31 CF.R. § 501.8, Respondent must pay the following on any amonnt
overdue under this CAFO. Interestwill accrue on any amount overdue from the date payment
was due at a rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant o 31US.C §3717a) 1
Respondent must pay a $15 handling charge each month that any portion of the penalty is more
than 30 davs past due. In addition, Respondent must pay a § percent per year penalty on any

principal amount 30 days past due.

Genersl Provisions

44. This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s Habikity for federal civil penalties for the

viclations and facts alleged in the CAFG,



. 45, This CAFO does not affect the ight of U.S. EPA or the United States to pursue

appropriate injunchive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions forany violations of law

46. This CAPO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to CampE y with RCRA and

Gi;her applicable federal, atatc local laws or permits.

47, This CAFO is a “final order” for rurposes of A0 CFIL § 2231, US EPA’s RCRA

ivil Penalty Policy, and U.S. EPA’s Hagzardous Waste Civil Enforcement Response Policy
{December 003y

48. The terms of this CAYO bind Respondent, ifs successors, and assipns

49, Each person signing this agreement certifies that he or she has the authority to sign

for the party whom he or sherepresents and to bind that party fo its terms

50. Each party agrees to bear is own costs and attormey’s fees in this action

(w3
oy

This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement betwoen the parties



Lawrenee Indostries, Inc., Kalamazoo, Kichigan
Respondent

f "’ﬁa’j ?”f” 7 /<fi g,fg}/ /8 y P s Y

Da‘ie 7 Stwen Lovelace
President

United States Envirommental Protection Agency, Complainant

-

b1, Aol ot il
)

Diate Bﬁi&%g@&@m-«-@w 7ﬁﬁ£&¢9 Lo Arre 2o la
. Aediag Director

Land and Chemieals Division




In the Matter oft Lawrence Incustries, Inc., Kalamazoo, Michigan.
Dackei NoeRCRA-05-2017-0007
Consent Agreement and Finai Order
Final Order
This Consent ﬁgreemeﬁr and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become

etfective imumediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Cledk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.ER. §§ 22.18 and 22 31. T 1S 80 ORDERED.

- o L.
. %;jin‘xmil'f\"‘ﬂ{,ﬁ.‘:\f"ﬁx ‘L“":?‘ . -:,\' LT "'\._:‘\H_.‘-x,‘-.;w s b L
Date 4 Ann L. Covie

Regional Tudicial Officer
United States Environmental Profection Agency
Region 3 |

19



In the Maticr of: Lawrsnce Indusiries, Inc., Kalamazoo, Michigan,
Docket No. RCRA-05-2017-0807
Consent Agreement and Final Order

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that today T served a true and correct copy of this fully executed and filed
Consent Agreement and Final Order for this civil administrative action as follows:

Copy to Respondent by Certified U.S. Mail, Return—Réceipt Requested:
Steven Lovélace, President
Lawrence Industries, Inc.
423 Walbridge Street
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49007
Copy to Counsel for Complainant, Via E-Mail:

Jeffery M. Trevino
frevino. jeffervi@epa.gov

Copy to Regional Judicial Officer, Via E-Mail:

- Ann L. Coyle

covle.annf@epa.gov /

1201 ik
LaDa‘In Whitehead

Regional Hearing Clerk
Region 5
- ) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
700 0320 000k O183 Ob7Y4 77 West Jackson Boulevard (C-19])
IS Chicago, THinois, 60604-3590

it



